Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

Penallta House, Ty Penallta, ‘

Tredomen Park, Parc Tredomen,

Ystrad Mynach, ¥strad Mynach, c A E R P H' .'. LY

Hengoed CF82 7PG Hengoed CF82 7PG SO BWRDEISTIREE SIRGL
%E RFFILY

www.caerphilly.gov.uk
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Am bob ymholiad ynglyn &’r agenda hwn cysylitwch & Emma Sullivan
(Rhif Ffon: 01443 864420 Ebost: sullie@caerphilly.gov.uk)

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 22 Chwefror 2023
Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Bydd cyfarfod Pwyllgor Safonau yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd Mawrth, 28ain
Chwefror, 2023 am 10.30 am i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. Mae croesoi chi

ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn
dymuno gwneud hynny.

Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr unigolion

sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar wefan y Cyngor yn
www.caerffili.gov.uk

Yr eiddoch yn gywir,

Christina Harrhy
PRIF WEITHREDWR

AGENDA

Tudalennau

1 | dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2 Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb.

Atgoffir Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol &

Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr
a Swyddogion.

A greener place Man gwyrddach

== ||

=i f = e

a‘
o
Gallwch ohebu mewn unrhyw iaith neu fie


http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/

3 Penodi Is-Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Safonau.

| gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:-

4 Pwyllgor Safonau a gynhaliwyd ar 20 lonawr 2022.

1-4
| dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol:-
5 Dyletswyddau Arweinwyr Grwp ac Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor Safonau. .1
6 Adroddiad Blynyddol Chwythu'r Chwiban.
13- 16
7 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru — Llythyr Blynyddol 2021/22. -0

Cylchrediad:
Cynghorwyr: J. Taylor a Mrs D. Price

P. Brunt, J. Card, L.M. Davies, C. Finn, Ms. L. Jay a V. Yadh
Cynghorydd Cymunedol Mrs A. Gray

A Swyddogion Priodol

SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a'rbarnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys
manyliony siaradwyr ar gaeli’r cyhoedd ar wefany Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau synymwneud ag
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.

Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas &’rwybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawli gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym
amdanoch a’rhawligwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’rmodd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu.

Am wybodaeth bellach ar sutrydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewchi'r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http:/iwww.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd neu cysylltwch & Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy
e-bostio grifid2 @caerffili.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01443 863028.



http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
>

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
ON 20™ JANUARY 2022 AT 2.00PM.

PRESENT:
P. Brunt, J. Card, L.M. Davies and C. Finn
Community Councillor Mrs G. Davies

County Councillors C. Mann and D. Price

Together with:

R. Tranter (Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer), L. Lane (Head of Democratic
Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer), S. Hughes (Committee Services Officer), R. Barrett
(Committee Services Officer), and E. Sullivan (Senior Committee Services Officer)

1. TO APPOINT A CHAIR OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

It was moved and seconded that Mr. P. Brunt be appointed as the Chair of the Standards
Committee and by show of hands this was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that Mr P. Brunt be appointed as the Chair of the Standards Committee.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence received.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received at the commencement or during the course of
the meeting.

4, MINUTES -28™ OCTOBER 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 28" October 2021, be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Page 1



ADOPTION OF PROCEDURES FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE HEARINGS

Consideration was given to the report which sought Standards Committee approval for the
adoption of a procedure to deal with investigation reports referred to it by the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW).

The Monitoring Officer explained that from time to time the Standards Committee received
reports from the PSOW into complaints made against Councillors of Caerphilly County
Borough Council or Councillors of Town and Community Councils within the boundary of the
county borough alleging that the Councillor had breached the code of conduct for Members.
Where this happens, there must be a procedure in place for dealing with the referral.

The Standards Committee were referred to Appendix 1 of the report which detailed the
procedure, and the Monitoring Officer outlined the steps open to the Standards Committee as
detailed within sections 5.3 and 5.4 of the report.

The Chair thanked Mr Tranter for presenting the report and questions from the Standards
Committee were welcomed.

Clarification was sought in relation to the Integrated Impact Assessment referenced in section
7 of the report. The Officer confirmed that this was part of standard Council report format and
related to Wellbeing of Future Generations and Equalities Act legislation, which although not
so relevant in terms of this report did form an important part of other reports and policy
documents like the Local Development Plan.

Reference was made to Section 3 of the Procedure, ‘referral to another Standards Committee’
and clarification sought as to whether this was dependent on the nature of the complaint or
other work. The Monitoring Officer confirmed that this would depend on the nature of the
report, for example it could be a matter where Caerphilly Council considers that it may have a
conflict of interest and in these circumstances another Standards Committee from a
neighbouring Council could assist. The Standards Committee were advised that this was a
very rare occurrence.

Having fully considered the Officer’s report it was moved and seconded that the
recommendation contained in the Officer’s report be approved and by show of hands this way
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED that the procedure found at Appendix 1 of the report be adopted to deal
with referrals from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales.

PUBLICINTEREST TEST

Members considered the public interest test certificate from the Proper Officer and concluded
that on balance the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest
in disclosing the information and it was: -

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely disclosure
to them of exempt information as identified in paragraph 12 and 18C of Part 4 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 2



REFERRAL OF AN INVESTIGATION REPORT BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN
FORWALES OF A COMPLAINT

Following consideration and discussion it was moved and seconded that there was no
evidence of a failure to comply with the code of conduct and therefore no further action was
required. Furthermore, the Chair requested that the Head of Legal Services and Monitoring
Officer write to all parties concerned informing them of the decision of the Standards
Committee and by show of hands and in noting there was 1 abstention this was agreed by the
majority present.

RESOLVED that: -

1. There is no evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and therefore
no further action is required.

2. The Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer be instructed to write to all
parties concerned on behalf of the Chair advising them of the decision of the
Standards Committee.

The meeting closed at 15.10pm.
Approved as a correctrecord and subjectto any amendments or corrections agreed and

recorded in the minutes of the next meeting of the Standards Committee they were signed by
the Chair.

CHAIR

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5

R
CAERPHILLY

ROUGH COUNCIL
YNGOR = WRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 28™ FEBRUARY 2023

SUBJECT: GROUP LEADERS DUTIES AND ANNUAL REPORT OF STANDARDS
COMMITTEE

REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES & MONITORING OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (“the Act”) has reformed the
legislative framework for local government elections, democracy, governance and
performance. This report concentrates on 2 changes brought about by the Act: the
new duties on group leaders to promote and maintain standards of conduct by
members of their respective political groups and the responsibility of the Standards
Committee to produce an annual report to Council.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The Act introduces 2 new duties on leaders of political groups in Welsh councils,
namely:-

(1) that aleader of a political group consisting of members of a county council or
county borough council in Wales, must take reasonable steps to promote and
maintain high standards of conduct by the members of the group.

(2) that aleader of a political group consisting of members of a county council or
county borough council in Wales, must co-operate with the council’'s standards
committee in the exercise of the standards committee’s functions.

2.2 The production of an annual report by the Standards Committee.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS
3.1 To note the changes to the legislation and to endorse how the Standards Committee

will monitor compliance with the duties by the Group Leaders and how the Standards
Committee will produce an annual report to council.

Page 5



5.1

5.2

5.3

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

To comply with the legislative changes introduced by the Act.

THE REPORT

Duties on Group Leaders

The Act has introduced many changes for local government in the spheres of
elections, governance, performance and democracy. The Act allows the Welsh
Government to issue guidance on the changes within the Act. The Welsh
Government has issued guidance to support leaders of political groups to understand
and discharge their duties in relation to high standards of conduct, whilst recognising
that they will wishto and should be encouraged to develop their own approach in line
with their wider statutory obligations, local circumstances, and best practice.

The first duty on group leaders to take reasonable steps to promote and maintain
high standards by the members of the group does not make leaders of a political
group accountable for the behaviour of their members as conduct must be a matter
of individual responsibility. However, the guidance says that group leaders do have a
role in taking reasonable steps in maintaining standards, setting an example, using
their influence to promote a positive culture, being proactive in promoting high
standards of conduct in their group and addressing issues as soon as they arise.

The guidance says that reasonable steps the group leader can undertake include:

o demonstrating personal commitment to and attending relevant development or
training around equalities and standards;

o encouraging group members to attend relevant development or training around
equalities and standards;

o ensuring nominees to a committee have received the recommended training for
that committee;

o promoting civility and respect within group communications and meetings and
in formal council meetings;

. promoting informal resolution procedures in the council, and working with the
standards committee and monitoring officers to achieve local resolution;

o promoting a culture within the group which supports high standards of conduct
and integrity;

. attend a meeting of the council’'s standards committee if requested to discuss
Code of Conduct issues;

o work to implement any recommendations from the Standards Committee about
improving standards;

o work together with other group leaders, within reason, to collectively support
high standards of conduct within the council.

Page 6



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

The second duty requires that a leader of a political group consisting of members of a
county council or county borough council in Wales, must co-operate with the
council’s standards committee (and any sub-committee of the committee) in the
exercise of the standards committee’s functions.

The guidance says that it is essential the leaders of a political group co-operate, and
ensure the members within their group co-operate, with the monitoring officer and
standards committee when an issue is referred to the standards committee.

The guidance advises that leaders of a political group should build good relations,
and work constructively with the monitoring officer, seeking advice from them and the
standards committee on matters of behaviour and conduct when required, both
promoting positive behaviours and addressing inappropriate ones. Group leaders
should also report compliance with their duty to the standards committee. This can
take the form of a short letter or report at a frequency agreed by the political group
leaders in the council and its standards committee. It is suggested in Caerphilly that
the group leaders complete a template as shown at appendix A. The template
should be completed so that the information is available in time to be referred to in
the annual report of the Standards Committee which will be given to the annual
meeting of councilin May each year, referred to later in the report. Group leaders
should also report any serious concerns about members’ behaviour which have not
been remedied by informal actions, in line with the requirement in the Code for
councillors to report breaches.

The template has been produced by Flintshire and it is hoped will be used across
Wales. The completed template by the group leader will be used in a confidential
meeting with the Standards Committee which will allow the Standards Committee to
assess how each group leader is complying with the duties. The assessment will
form part of the Standards Committee’s annual report to Council.

The guidance on the second duty says that if a member is found by the standards
committee to be in breach of the Code of Conduct and is disciplined by the
committee, the leader of the political group must support the action, in order to
maintain the high standards of conduct expected in public life and the Code. Group
leaders should have regard to the Ombudsman’s Guidance and the Sanctions
Guidance issued by the President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales, which can be
accessed on the Adjudication Panel’s website.

Annual report of Standards Committee

The Act also extends the specific functions of a standards committee to include
monitoring compliance by leaders of political groups with the new duty imposed on
them by the 2021 Act to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
members of their group. As noted above, the political group leaders will complete the
template at appendix A annually for consideration by the standards committee in its
assessment of how group leaders are complying with the duties. Its assessment of
how the group leaders are complying with their new duties will be included in the
annual report.

The annual report of the Standards Committee mustinclude:

o describe how the committee has discharged its functions during the preceding

financial year;

Page 7


https://adjudicationpanel.gov.wales/references-public-services-ombudsman-wales

. include a summary of reports and recommendations made or referred to the
committee by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales relating to the
investigation of alleged breaches of the member code of conduct, and any
subsequent action taken by the committee;

o include a summary of notices given to the committee by the Adjudication Panel
for Wales, relating to the Panel’s decisions on possible breaches of the
member code of conduct;

. describe the advice it has provided on training for all members and how that
has been implemented, and

o the committee’s assessment of how the political group leaders have complied
with the new duty to promote high standards of conduct, including the advice
the standards committee has provided and the training it has suggested.

5.11 The standards committee may also wish to report on the number of cases considered
under the Council’s local resolution protocol. This will help to capture data on an “all
Wales” basis, on matters which do not reach the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales.

5.12 The requirement to make an annual report is intended to ensure there is a regular
and consistent approach to the reporting and consideration of standards of conduct
by members of councils in Wales. This is intended to promote local ownership and
collective responsibility by members for ensuring high standards of conduct within
their authority. To this end, the Act places an obligation on the Council to consider
the report and any recommendations made by its standards committee within three
months of its receipt. The authority’s consideration of a report will be a matter of
public record through the published minutes of the meeting.

5.13 The guidance states that it would be good practice for the Standards Committee to
share the annual report with the Ombudsman.

5.14 The terms of reference of the Standards Committee has already been amended to
include the new duty to produce an annual report.

6. ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 No assumptions are required within this report.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1 Due to the nature of the report, there is no requirement to undertake an Integrated
Impact Assessment.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no financial implications outside agreed budgets.

Page 8



9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are none.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 Any responses have been included within the report.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1 Local Government and Elections Act 2021

Appendices: Appendix A - Promoting Compliance with the Code of Conduct

Author: Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
trantrj@caerphilly.gov.uk

Consultation: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive
Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer
Clir S. Morgan, Leader of Council and Leader of the Labour Group
CliIr L. Whittle, Group Leader of the Plaid Cymru Group
Clir K. Etheridge, Group Leader of the Independent Group

Page 9



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10



Appendix A

Promoting Compliance with the Code of Conduct

Report by:

Political Group:

No. of members: | No. trained on Code:X (Y%)

For the period:

Number, Source and Level of Complaints

Informal Local Resolution (Stage) PSOW
1 2
Public
Officers
Councillors

Steps taken to Promote Compliance
(To Be Completed by Group Leader)

Include matters such as:

- demonstrating personal commitment to and attending relevant development or
training around equalities and standards;

- encouraging group members to attend relevant development or training around
equalities and standards;

- ensuring nominees to a Committee have received the recommended
training for that Committee;

- promoting civility and respect within group communications and meetings and in
formal Council meetings;

- promoting informal resolution procedures in the Council, and working with the
Standards Committee and monitoring officers to achieve local resolution;

- promoting a culture within the group which supports high standards of conduct
and integrity;

- attend a meeting of the Council’s Standards Committee if requested to discuss
Code of Conduct issues;

- work to implement any recommendations from the Standards Committee about
improving standards;

- work together with other group leaders, within reason, to collectively support
high standards of conduct within the Council.

Page 11



Page 12



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6

R\
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CYNGOR BWIRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 28™ FEBRUARY 2023

SUBJECT: ANNUAL WHISTLEBLOWING REPORT

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION & CORPORATE SERVICES

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report provides an anonymised summary of whistleblowing investigations
undertaken during the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022

2. SUMMARY

2.1 The Standards Committee’s terms of reference include a responsibility to oversee the
Council’s whistleblowing regime. An annual report is presented to them containing
information in relation to the number of investigations in line with the Council’s
Whistleblowing Policy.

2.2 During the period 1t April 2021 to 315t March 2022, no whistleblowing investigations
have been undertaken.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The Committee are asked to note the contents of this report.

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 To update the Committee with regards to the operation of the Council’s
Whistleblowing Policy during the period 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 in
accordance with its terms of reference.

5. THE REPORT

5.1 The Whistleblowing Policy provides a method for employees to raise concerns about
the running of the Council without fear of victimisation. All employees have access to

this policy.

5.2 The policy covers any disclosures that employees make with regard to any alleged
wrong-doing. The policy aims to reassure employees that it is safe and acceptable to

Page 13



5.3

54

55

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

speak up and raise serious concerns about malpractice, without risk of disciplinary
action. In the policy the categories of wrongdoing include:

- Criminal offences, including conduct which is an offence or a breach of law or
sexual or physical abuse of clients;

- Failure to comply with legal obligations including the unauthorised use of public
funds, possible fraud and corruption; discrimination against the public or
colleagues;

- Miscarriages of justice;

- Dangers to health or safety including risks to the public as well as other
employees;

- Danger or damage to the environment;
- Deliberate concealment of any of the above.

The Policy forms part of the Officer's Code of Conduct and is found within the
Council’s Constitution.

The terms of reference of the Standards Committee includes a responsibility to
oversee the whistleblowing regime.

A Whistleblowing Commission was set up in February 2013 by the leading
Whistleblowing Charity - Public Concern at Work (PCaW). Their remit was to review
the effectiveness of whistleblowing in UK workplaces, and to make recommendations
for change. The Commission was an independent body made up of industry and
academic experts and chaired by the Right Honourable Sir Anthony Hooper (former
appeal court judge).

In late November 2013, it published its findings, with the primary recommendation
being for the Secretary of State to adopt a Code of Practice that could be taken into
account in whistleblowing cases before courts and tribunals. The Commission had
published a draft Code which sets out clear standards for organisations across all
sectors to enable them to have clear whistleblowing arrangements. The Code of
Practice is designed to help regulators assess and inspect whistleblowing
arrangements. The Code of Practice was designed to be adopted by organisations
that are looking to achieve the highest standards in ensuring that workers are
encouraged to speak up and when they do, that they are listened to.

Officers worked with the Charity Public Concern at Work (now Protect), who were
identified as being able to support best practice in this area. As a consequence the
Council was able to access guidance, resources and support from Public Concern at
Work to develop a new Whistleblowing Policy reflective of guidance and regulations.

Additionally the Council has access to an ongoing facility provided for employees to
access the confidential support helpline provided by Protect. This enables individuals
to make contact in a confidential manner, should they wish to seek independent
advice.

In line with the findings of the Commission, the Council’s Policy was reviewed and an

amended policy adopted by the Council in December 2015. The policy was written in
plain English, to encourage a wide understanding by employees. The policy was

Page 14



5.10

511

5.12

5.13

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

11.

111

Author:

heavily based around the model policy provided by Public Concern at Work and was
developed by the Council with the support of the Improving Governance Programme
Board.

Following the adoption of the revised policy by the Council it was uploaded to HR
Support Portal and a communication plan undertaken to increase awareness across
the wider organisation. Communication with regard to this policy continues across the
Council.

The Policy is being reviewed again this year and advice will be sought from Protect
with regard to best practice. The revised Policy will be communicated to all staff and
will be subject to ongoing communication.

Recommendations from whistleblowing investigations are monitored for
implementation by the Council’s Monitoring Officer.

There were no investigations undertaken in line with the Council’s Whistleblowing
Policy during the period 1% April 2021 to 31% March 2022.

ASSUMPTIONS

There are no assumptions made within this report.

SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

An Integrated Impact Assessment has not been completed as this report is an
information item.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications to this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications to this report.

CONSULTATIONS

The consultation responses have been incorporated in the report.
STATUTORY POWER

Local Government Act 2000.

Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.
Employment Act 2008.

Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services

Page 15



Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director — Education & Corporate Services
Robert Tranter Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Lisa Lane, Deputy Monitoring Officer & Head of Democratic Services
Councillor Nigel George, Cabinet Member for Corporate Services

Page 16



Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7

R\
CAERPHILLY

OQUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
[ YNGOR BWRIDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFILY
4

STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 28™ FEBRUARY 2023

SUBJECT: PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES — ANNUAL LETTER
2021/22

REPORT BY: HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND DEPUTY MONITORING
OFFICER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform the Standards Committee of the publication of the Annual Letter for
2021/2022 in respect of Caerphilly Council by the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales.

2. SUMMARY

2.1  To advise the Committee of the publication of the Public Services Ombudsman for
Wales Annual Letter for 2021/2022.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 It is recommended that the Standards Committee considers and notes the content of
the Annual Letter.

4, REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 To satisfy the Council’s statutory duties under the Public Services Ombudsman
(Wales) Act 2019.

5. THE REPORT

5.1 The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) issues an Annual Letter to each
Local Authority in Wales which sets out a summary of all complaints received and
investigated by her office during 2021/2022 relating to that Authority. The
Annual Letter issued in respect of Caerphilly is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

5.2 Members will note that last year the number of complaints referred to the
Ombudsman about local authorities in general increased by 47% (compared to 20/21
figures) and are now well above pre pandemic levels. The letter notes it is likely that
complaints to Ombudsman’s office, and public services in general, were suppressed

Page 17



5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

during the pandemic, and that the expected ‘rebound’ effect is being seen. During
this period, the Ombudsman intervened in (upheld, settled or resolved at an early
stage) a similar proportion of complaints about public bodies, 18%, when compared
with recent years. Intervention rates (where they have investigated complaints) for
Local Authorities also remained at a similar level — 14% compared to 13% in recent
years.

The Ombudsman also received a high number of complaints relating to the Code of
Conduct for Councillors last year, relating to both Principal Councils and Town and
Community Councils with 20 referred to either the Adjudication Panel for Wales or
local standards committees, due to evidence of a breach of the Code.

In terms of the use of the proactive powers in the Public Services Ombudsman
(Wales) Act 2019, this has resulted in the publication of the first Own Initiative
Investigation report entitled Homelessness Reviewed. The report published in
October last year made specific recommendations to the three investigated
authorities, as well as suggestions to all other Local Authorities in Wales and Welsh
Government. Some of these recommendations will bring about immediate change —
updating factsheets and letter and assessment templates to ensure that key equality
and human rights considerations are routinely embedded into processes for example
— all the recommendations were designed to bring about tangible change to people
using homelessness services in Wales.

The Complaints Standards Authority (CSA) has also continued its work with public
bodies in Wales last year with the adoption of the model complaints policy being
extended to an initial tranche of Housing Associations and Natural Resources Wales;
the aim being to implement this work across the Welsh public sector.

In addition to this, the CSA published information on complaints handled by local
authorities for the first time. The data for 21/22 showed: - Over 15,000 complaints
were recorded by Local Authorities - 4.88 for every 1000 residents. - Nearly half
(46%) of those complaints were upheld. - About 75% were investigated within 20
working days. - About 8% of all complaints closed ended up being referred to PSOW.
The CSA has also delivered 140 training sessions, completely free of charge, during
the last financial year. The letter notes that the feedback has been excellent, and the
training has been very popular and encourages Caerphilly County Borough Council
to engage as fully as possible.

The letter also notes the new duties on political leaders and standards committees to
promote and maintain high standards of conduct of their members and highlights the
sharing of the learning from complaints between the Ombudsman’s office, the
Standards Committee and local authority officers.

Specifically in relation to the complaints for Caerphilly, the Ombudsman received 60
complaints compared to 46 last year broken down as follows with the previous years’
figures in brackets.

Adult Social Services 6 3
Benefits Administration 1 ©
Children's Social Services 8 9
Community Facilities, Recreation and Leisure 1 0)
Complaints Handling 10 (5)

Page 18



5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

Covid19 3 ©
Education 1 Q)
Environment and Environmental Health 6 (4)
Finance and Taxation 0 (0)
Housing 8 (13
Licensing 0 ©
Planning and Building Control 11 (10)
Roads and Transport 3 0)
Various Other 2 Q)
Total 60 (46)

The Complaint Outcomes are set out in section C with 7 referrals requiring early
resolution/voluntary settlement. The comparison figures with other authorities in
Wales is set out in section D.

The Letter also includes a summary of the Code of Conduct complaints relating to
members of the Council and Town and Community Councils. In relation to Code of
Conduct complaints for Caerphilly council there was no evidence of a breach in
respect of 1 matter and 1 matter was referred to the Council’s Standards Committee.
There were 3 outcomes in relation to Town and Community Councils specifically
Bedwas Trethomas and Machen Community Council, Blackwood Town Council and
Rhymney Community Council all of which found no evidence of a breach.

Conclusion

Members will note that the Ombudsman has asked Councils to take the following
actions

* Present the Annual Letter to the Cabinet and to the Governance & Audit Committee
to assist members in their scrutiny of the Council’s performance and share any
feedback from the Cabinet and the Governance & Audit Committee with my office.

* Continue to engage with the Complaints Standards work, accessing training for
your staff, fully implementing the model policy, and providing complaints data.

* Inform the Ombudsman of the outcome of the Council’s considerations and
proposed actions on the above matters by 30 September.

Whilstthe Ombudsman has asked that the Annual Letter be reported to Cabinet and
the Governance and Audit Committee, this Council’s reporting process is to the
Standards Committee and full Council which provides all members with the ability to
review the referrals to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales. This report was
presented to a meeting of Council on 24" November 2022.

In relation to the work with the Complaints Standards Authority, officers from a cross

section of service areas have undertaken training and further training has been
sourced for April next year which is the earliest available date.

Page 19



5.14 The Ombudsman has been advised that the Annual Letter was presented to Council
on the 24" November 2022 and will also be advised of its presentation to the
Standards Committee.

6. ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 No assumptions are necessary within this report.

7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1 This report is for information and so there is no requirement to undertake an
Integrated Impact Assessment.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

10. CONSULTATIONS

10.1 This Report reflects the contents of the Annual Letter and therefore there has been
no formal consultation on the content of the Report. A copy of the Report has been
provided to the Consultees below.

11. STATUTORY POWER

11.1  Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2019

Author: Lisa Lane Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer

Consultees: Richard (Ed) Edmunds Corporate Director Education and Corporate

Services
Robert Tranter Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Appendix 1 Annual Letter 2021/2022

Page 20



Appendix 1 pmbwdsmon
Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Ask for:  Communications
&= 01656 641150

Date: August 2022 communications@ombudsman.wales

Cllr. Sean Morgan
Caerphilly County Borough Council
By Email only: seanmorgan@caerphilly.gov.uk

Annual Letter 2021/22
Dear Councillor Morgan

| am pleased to provide you with the Annual letter (2021/22) for Caerphilly County
Borough Council which deals with complaints relating to maladministration and
service failure, complaints relating to alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct for
Councillors and the actions being taken to improve public services

This is my first annual letter since taking up the role of Public Services
Ombudsman in April 2022, and | appreciate that the effects of the pandemic are
still being felt by all public bodies in Wales. Our office has not been immune from
this, with records numbers of cases being referred to us over the last two years.
The strong working relationships between my Office and local authorities
continues to deliver improvements in how we are dealing with complaints and
ensuring that, when things go wrong, we are learning from that and building
stronger public services.

Complaints relating to Maladministration & Service Failure

Last year the number of complaints referred to us regarding Local Authorities
increased by 47% (compared to 20/21 figures) and are now well above pre-
pandemic levels. It is likely that complaints to my office, and public services in
general, were suppressed during the pandemic, and we are now starting to see
the expected ‘rebound’ effect.

During this period, we intervened in (upheld, settled or resolved at an early stage)
a similar proportion of complaints about public bodies, 18%, when compared with
recent years. Intervention rates (where we have investigated complaints) for
Local Authorities also remained at a similar level — 14% compared to 13% in
recent years.

Page 1 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
) o) www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
‘) 01656 641150 == 01656 6&199 'iisk@ombudsman-wales,org‘uk | helwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio


Appendix 1


Complaints relating to the Code of Conduct for Councillors

We also received a high number of Code of Conduct complaints last year,
relating to both Principal Councils and Town and Community Councils. A record
number (20) were referred to either the Adjudication Panel for Wales or local
standards committees, due to evidence of a breach of the Code.

Supporting improvement of public services

In addition to managing record levels of complaints, we also continued our work
using our proactive powers in the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2019.
Specifically undertaking our first Own Initiative Investigation and continuing our
work on the Complaints Standards Authority.

October 2021 saw the publication of the first own initiative investigation in Wales:
Homelessness Reviewed. The investigation featured three Local Authorities and
sought to scrutinise the way Homelessness assessments were conducted. The
report made specific recommendations to the investigated authorities, as well as
suggestions to all other Local Authorities in Wales and Welsh Government. Some
of these recommendations will bring about immediate change — updating
factsheets and letter and assessment templates to ensure that key equality and
human rights considerations are routinely embedded into processes for example
— all the recommendations were designed to bring about tangible change to
people using homelessness services in Wales.

The Complaints Standards Authority (CSA) continued its work with public bodies
in Wales last year. The model complaints policy has already been adopted by
local authorities and health boards in Wales, we have now extended this to an
initial tranche of Housing Associations and Natural Resources Wales. The aim
being to implement this work across the Welsh public sector.

In addition to this, the CSA published information on complaints handled by local
authorities for the first time — a key achievement for this work. The data for 21/22
showed:

- Over 15,000 complaints were recorded by Local Authorities

- 4.88 for every 1000 residents.

- Nearly half (46%) of those complaints were upheld.

- About 75% were investigated within 20 working days.

- About 8% of all complaints closed ended up being referred to PSOW.

The CSA has now implemented a model complaints policy with nearly 50 public
bodies, and delivered 140 training sessions, completely free of charge, during the
last financial year. The feedback has been excellent, and the training has been
very popular - so | would encourage Caerphilly County Borough Council to
engage as fully as possible.

Page 22

Page 2 of 9


https://www.ombudsman.wales/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/Homelessness-Reviewed-an-open-door-to-positive-change.pdf
https://www.ombudsman.wales/published-statistics/

Complaints made to the Ombudsman

A summary of the complaints of maladministration/service failure received
relating to your Council is attached, along with a summary of the Code of
Conduct complaints relating to members of the Council and the Town &
Community Councils in your area.

In light of the new duties on political leaders and standards committees to
promote and maintain high standards of conduct of their members, we look
forward to working with you, your Monitoring Officer and standards committees to
share any learning from the complaints we receive and to support your authority’s
work.

| would also welcome feedback on your Governance & Audit Committee’s review
of your authority’s ability to handle complaints effectively so that we can take this
into account in our work and support its work on the handling of complaints.

Finally, can | thank you and your officials for the positive way that local authorities
have engaged with my Office to enable us to deliver these achievements during
what has been a challenging year for everyone. | very much look forward to
continuing this work and collaboration to ensure we further improve public
services across Wales.

Further to this letter can | ask that your Council takes the following actions:

* Present my Annual Letter to the Cabinet and to the Governance & Audit
Committee to assist members in their scrutiny of the Council’s
performance and share any feedback from the Cabinet and the
Governance & Audit Committee with my office.

* Continue to engage with our Complaints Standards work, accessing
training for your staff, fully implementing the model policy, and providing
complaints data.

* Inform me of the outcome of the Council’'s considerations and proposed
actions on the above matters by 30 September.

This correspondence is copied to the Chief Executive of your Council and to your
Contact Officer. Finally, a copy of all Annual Letters will be published on my
website.

Yours sincerely,

MM Moms.

Michelle Morris

Public Services Ombudsman

cc. Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive, Caerphilly County Borough Council.
By Email only: harrhc@caerphilly.gov.uk

Page 23

Page 3 of 9



Factsheet

Appendix A - Complaints Received

pmbwdsmon
Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

. Complaints Received

Local Authority . per 1000
Received residents

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 14 0.20
Bridgend County Borough Council 55 0.37
Caerphilly County Borough Council 60 0.33
Cardiff Council* 182 0.50
Carmarthenshire County Councll 54 0.29
Ceredigion County Council 52 0.72
Conwy County Borough Council 27 0.23
Denbighshire County Council 34 0.36
Flintshire County Council 99 0.63
Gwynedd Council 39 0.31
Isle of Anglesey County Council 29 0.41
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 27 0.45
Monmouthshire County Council 20 0.21
Neath Port Talbot Council 45 0.31
Newport City Council 40 0.26
Pembrokeshire County Council 39 0.31
Powys County Council 55 0.42
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 51 0.21
Swansea Council 71 0.29
Torfaen County Borough Council 18 0.19
Vale of Glamorgan Council 61 0.46
Wrexham County Borough Council 71 0.52
Total 1143 0.36

*inc 17 Rent Smart Wales

Page 4 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
) o www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
#%) 01656 641150 == 01656 6&199 'iﬂsk@ombudsman-wales,org‘uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



Gz abed

pmbwdsmon

Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Appendix B - Received by Subject

Caerphilly County Borough Council Complaints Received % Share
Adult Social Services 6 10%
Benefits Administration 1 2%
Children's Social Services 8 13%
Community Facilities, Recreation and Leisure 1 2%
Complaints Handling 10 17%
Covid19 3 5%
Education 1 2%
Environment and Environmental Health 6 10%
Finance and Taxation 0 0%
Housing 8 13%
Licensing 0 0%
Planning and Building Control 11 18%
Roads and Transport 3 5%
Various Other 2 3%

| Total 60

Page 5 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
) & www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
#m) 01656 641150 == 01656 641199 (%] ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



9¢ abed

Appendix C - Complaint Outcomes

(* denotes intervention)

o

mbwdsmon
Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Other cases .
closed after Other Reports- |Other Reports|  -UP!iC
County/County Borough Councils Out of Jurisdiction Premature T Early Resolution/ voluntary settlement* Discontinued P P Interest Total
initial Not Upheld Upheld* Report:
consideration p
Caerphilly County Borough Council 9 16 26 7 0 0 0 0 58
% Share 16%: 28% 45% 12% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Page 6 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
o) www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

5 ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

) 01656 641150 5 01656 641199

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



pmbwdsmon

Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Appendix D - Cases with PSOW Intervention

No. of No. of % of
interventions closures | interventions
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 0 13 0%
Bridgend County Borough Council 7 54 13%
Caerphilly County Borough Council 7 58 12%
Cardiff Council 45 159 28%
Cardiff Council - Rent Smart Wales 1 16 6%
Carmarthenshire County Council 7 49 14%
Ceredigion County Council 13 46 28%
Conwy County Borough Council 2 24 8%
Denbighshire County Council 4 33 12%
Flintshire County Council 15 94 16%
Gwynedd Council 6 41 15%
Isle of Anglesey County Council 3 28 11%
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 2 26 8%
Monmouthshire County Council 2 21 10%
Neath Port Talbot Council 5 45 11%
Newport City Council 4 36 11%
Pembrokeshire County Council 2 40 5%
Powys County Council 7 55 13%
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 3 45 7%
Swansea Council 10 76 13%
Torfaen County Borough Council 2 20 10%
Vale of Glamorgan Council 9 62 15%
Wrexham County Borough Council 4 67 6%
Total 160 1108 14%
Page 7 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ

o www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

%) 01656 641150 == 01656 641199 5] _gsk@ombudsman-wales.org.uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
Page 27

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



pmbwdsmon

Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Appendix E - Code of Conduct Complaints

. . Refer to
County/County Borough Councils Discontinued No et:/::aegr::e of :fc:gg:: Refer to Adjudication Panel Standards Withdrawn Total
y Committee
Caerphilly County Borough Council 0 1 0 0 1 0 2
Appendix F - Town/Community Council Code of Complaints
«Q
@ No evidence of No action Refer to
Town/Community Council Discontinued Refer to Adjudication Panel Standards Withdrawn Total
breach necessar
(0)e) Y Committee
Bedwas, Trethomas & Machen Community Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Blackwood Town Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Rhymney Community Council 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Page 8 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
N e~ www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
) 01656 641150 5 01656 641199 5 ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



62 abed

pmbwdsmon

Ombudsman

OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAL CYHOEDDUS CYMRU
PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

Information Sheet

Appendix A shows the number of complaints received by PSOW for all Local Authorities in 2021/2022. These complaints are
contextualised by the number of people each health board reportedly serves.

Appendix B shows the categorisation of each complaint received, and what proportion of received complaints represents for
the Local Authority.

Appendix C shows outcomes of the complaints which PSOW closed for the Local Authority in 2021/2022. This table shows
both the volume, and the proportion that each outcome represents for the Local Authority.

Appendix D shows Intervention Rates for all Local Authorities in 2021/2022. An intervention is categorised by either an upheld
complaint (either public interest or non-public interest), an early resolution, or a voluntary settlement.

Appendix E shows the outcomes of Code Of Conduct complaints closed by PSOW related to Local Authority in
2021/2022.This table shows both the volume, and the proportion that each outcome represents for the Local Authority.

Appendix F shows the outcomes of Code of Conduct complaints closed by PSOW related to Town and Community Councils
in the Local Authority’s area. This table shows both the volume, and the proportion that each outcome represents for each
Town or Community Council.

Page 9 of 9

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
) ) www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk
#w) 01656 641150 =z 01656 641199 %] ask@ombudsman-wales.org.uk | holwch@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 30



	Agenda
	4 Pwyllgor Safonau a gynhaliwyd ar 20 Ionawr 2022.
	5 Dyletswyddau Arweinwyr Grwp ac Adroddiad Blynyddol y Pwyllgor Safonau.
	Atodiad  A

	6 Adroddiad Blynyddol Chwythu'r Chwiban.
	7 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru – Llythyr Blynyddol 2021/22.
	Atodiad 1




